
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           August 29, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 5 

City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Special Meeting 
August 29, 2006 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on August 29, 2006, at 6 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Tony Pippel   Brad Hanson 
 Jim Wood  John Combs 
 Larry Hill 
       
Also in attendance were the following: 
  

 Tom Healy, City Manager 
 Jack Snodgrass, City Attorney 
 Janette Bower, City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Hill. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented.  
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
Rex Erps, Crimson View Subdivision resident asked if an annexation cost analysis concerning 
the City’s obtainment of the Subdivision’s water system had been completed. He stated that due 
to the capacity of the water system, the system was unable to support fire hydrants. He stated that 
should the City decide to put in fire hydrants, the entire main would need to be dug up. Mr. Erps 
referred to 3AAC 110.50 and spoke of the right to vote on the annexation. 
 
John Leiner highlighted his Borough property tax assessment indicating an equity loss due the 
City’s land trade and contractor activity. He spoke of the need to be treated fairly and previous 
conversations with Mr. Hattenburg of Hattenburg, Dilley and Linnel (HDL). He highlighted his 
conversations with Attorney Snodgrass regarding right-of-way and easement issue. Mr. Leiner 
highlighted correspondence between State Representatives, HDL, and the City of Palmer.   
 
Sara Mayfield, Crimson View Subdivision resident, stated that the homeowners do not have 
answers regarding their water system and stated that the homeowners do not want to be forced to 
accept the City’s trash collection should they be annexed into the City. She spoke of the 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           August 29, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 5 

Economic Annexation Study and stated that the homeowner’s need to have a voice in the 
annexation process. 
 
Melody Stokes voiced concern regarding the water system, light pollution and the lack of a vote 
by the homeowners. She asked that more information regarding the proposed annexation be 
made available to the public.  
 
F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 06-093: Authorize a Sole Source Contract with ProComm Alaska 
to Provide a Communication Shelter Building and Direct that a Budget Amendment be Prepared 
to Appropriate $155,000 for the Palmer Communications Center Upgrade Project 
MOVED BY Vanover 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To accept the action of action memorandum 06-093 

 
City Manager Healy spoke of the sole source criteria and the proposal by ProComm. He 
described the proposed equipment as the only equipment meeting the APCO 25 requirements. He 
stated that there other companies who build the structure and spoke of the building’s technical 
requirements.  
 
Council Member Pippel asked of the project funding. City Manager Healy highlighted the Tri-
Borough grant, federal money allocated by the Department of Defense, and Homeland Security 
Grant. He spoke of the Mat-Su Borough’s efforts to install a CAD system and explained the 
grants’ exclusion of structures. 
 
Council Member Pippel asked if the building would support all users of the system and spoke of 
the shared costs and the City’s requirement to use “real money” to pay for the building. He 
voiced his desire for the City to pay their share and no more.  
 
Council Member Wood announced the grant’s extended time limit to December 2007. He spoke 
of the grant language regarding a permanent structure and the actual portability of the building. 
He stated that had a representative been at the grant acceptance, perhaps the decision would have 
been different. Council Member Wood referenced the appeal process and suggested that the 
proposal not be accepted as written. He voiced concern regarding the sole source nature of the 
request and highlighted the dispatch system requirements.   
 
Council Member Hanson voiced his agreement with Council Member Wood and the need to 
conduct additional research regarding the need to sole source. He spoke of the portable nature of 
the building, grant funds, and involved public monies. He suggested that bids be solicited for the 
project. 
 
Council Member Hill highlighted his experience with the technology and voiced his agreement 
with Council Member Wood regarding the need to conduct additional research concerning the 
sole source request. He suggested that action be postponed and spoke of ProComm as the only 
authorized provider for the building’s equipment. Council Member Hill referenced the portability 
of the building and the figure provided by ProComm. He stated that the quote included all 
equipment. Council Member Hill spoke of Alaska built products and the building’s grounding 
requirements. He expanded on the City’s liability in an emergency.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           August 29, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 5 

Council Member Pippel thanked the council members for their research and voiced his 
agreement with Council Member Hill regarding the need to “do the project correctly”. He voiced 
the importance of addressing the funding with the other involved entities.  
 
City Manager Healy spoke of the option for the proposal to be reviewed by a consultant. He 
spoke of Borough participation and the determination that Motorola was the sole source provider 
for the consol equipment. He highlighted his conversation with the City of Kodiak regarding 
their project and the review process used.  
 
Council Member Hill suggested that Motorola was not the only source for the equipment and 
spoke of the trunking system. He stated the need to clear up all proprietary issues.  
 
Council Member Pippel asked of a contractual agreement with the Borough regarding the costs 
of the Dispatch Center. City Manager Healy stated that there was an agreement.  
 
Council Member Pippel spoke of subsidies within the core of the Borough by the City. He spoke 
of the Borough’s tax base and voiced his objection to the Borough’s lack of contribution to the 
cost of the building. 
 
Mayor Combs spoke of the division of costs for the dispatch center and the reallocation of funds 
by the Borough. 
 
Council Member Pippel asked that the persons who write the grants be more cognizant of the 
parameters of the granting agency. Council Member Wood explained the grant review committee 
meeting and the police department’s notification regarding the exclusion of the building. He 
highlighted the Dispatch Center’s backup equipment and spoke of the latitude to postpone action.  
 
Council Member Pippel spoke of reconsideration by the granting agency and asked that the 
$155,000 be reimbursed to the City rather than the Borough should the funds be included in the 
grant. Council Member Hill spoke of the decision by Homeland Security to not fund the 
building. 
 

Moved by: Pippel 
Seconded by: Hanson 

To postpone to the September 12 meeting 

 

Vote:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Wood Hill    
Hanson Combs     

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion postponed to the September 12 meeting. 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 06-095: Authorize City Manager to Obtain Services to Complete 
a Design of the Communications Shelter and to Advertise for Bids for the Shelter’s Construction 
MOVED BY Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To accept the action of action memorandum 06-095 

 

Moved by: Pippel 
Seconded by: Wood 

To postpone to the September 12 meeting 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           August 29, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 4 of 5 

Vote:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Wood Hill    
Hanson Combs     

 

VOTE ON MOTION: Motion postponed to the September 12 meeting. 
 
Item 2 – Review and Discussion of Anticipated City of Palmer Annexation (Action may be 
taken by the Council following the Committee of the Whole): 
 
Clerk’s note: the council returned to Audience Participation to allow additional members of the 
public to testify. 
 
Terry Lapka, Crimson View Subdivision resident voiced concern regarding the affect of the 
annexation on the subdivision. He asked if the City could improve the services already received 
and asked what new services the homeowners would receive. He spoke of his contentment with 
the subdivision and the subdivision’s water system. Mr. Lapka expanded on additional costs to 
the homeowners should the subdivision be annexed. 
 
Tony Cox, president of Crimson View Homeowners Association stated that the subdivision 
received word regarding the annexation approximately ten days ago. He stated that homeowners 
are happy with the water system and described the water system as a public utility. Mr. Cox 
voiced homeowner concerns regarding additional taxes. He stated that the subdivision would like 
to stay the way they are and desired to see all information in black and white. He stated that there 
are approximately 15 subdivisions in the area and spoke of the annexation’s impact on the 
subdivisions. Mr. Cox asked if the process was a legislative process and if the process was open 
to the public. City Manager Healy spoke of the two types of annexation and spoke of the 
council’s intent to proceed with a legislative type of annexation. 
 
Karen Leet, Equestrian Acres Subdivision resident voiced concern regarding additional services 
received within the subdivision. She stated that some of the services which could be of benefit to 
the subdivision were already being received and were satisfactory. Ms. Cox spoke of the 
Economic Annexation Study and the additional costs of annexation to the City. She asked if the 
City would begin to actively pursue large retail establishments to pay for the services. Ms. Cox 
spoke of her ownership of a water system and asked what would happen to the system once the 
City annexes.  
 
Frangois Vecchio, President of the Midtown Estates Homeowners Association stated that 
Midtown Estates has been confronted with major issues regarding the water system. He stated 
that it appears the City was missing a vision of what Palmer was to become. He spoke of 
development in Wasilla. Mr. Vecchio stated that annexation would be against the fiber of the 
Borough and spoke of articulation between the City and Borough. He spoke of the strong need to 
discover how the procedure would continue and the opportunity of homeowners to contribute to 
the process.  
 

MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To enter into a committee of the whole to review and 
discuss the anticipated City of Palmer annexation 

 
The council entered into a committee of the whole at 7:24 p.m. and exited at 8:32 p.m. 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           August 29, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 5 of 5 

The following items were discussed during the committee of the whole: 
 

• Audience concerns regarding the existing water systems within subdivisions; 
• Fire protection ratings and the classification of the ratings; 
• City garbage service boundaries; 
• Area wide, non-area wide and City taxes; 
• City police force; 
• Land use and planning; 
• Area growth; 
• Financial impact of annexation; 
• Proposed boundaries. 

 

VOTE ON MOTION:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Wood Hill    
Hanson Combs     

 
Clerk’s note: the council returned to Audience Participation to allow additional members of the 
public to testify. 
 
Sara Mayfield asked for assurance regarding the City’s lack of desire and ability to take over 
Crimson View Subdivision’s water system. Attorney Snodgrass explained the legal parameters 
and stated that the City could act only within those parameters.  
 
Karen Leet commented on the asphalt plant located in the Midtown Estates vicinity and Borough 
zoning. She spoke of the bigger concern regarding overall zoning designations within the 
Borough. Discussion ensued regarding the zoning powers of the Borough and City of Palmer. 
 
Frangois Vecchio voiced his appreciation of the council’s desire to hold to a standard regarding 
quality of development. He commented on Borough politics and of council in-put at the City 
level. Mr. Vecchio stated the need to express the overall benefits of annexation for citizens.  
 
G.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:46 p.m.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS 12th day of September, 2006. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
       John C. Combs, Mayor  
 
___________________________________ 
Janette M. Bower, CMC, City Clerk  
 

jbower
signature

jbower
signature



